Public Document Pack



Democratic Services White Cliffs Business Park Dover Kent CT16 3PJ

Telephone: (01304) 821199 Fax: (01304) 872453

DX: 6312

Minicom: (01304) 820115
Website: www.dover.gov.uk
e-mail: democraticservices

@dover.gov.uk

22 June 2016

Dear Councillor

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the **DOVER LEISURE CENTRE PROJECT ADVISORY GROUP** will be held in the Council Chamber at these Offices on Thursday 30 June 2016 at 6.00 pm when the following business will be transacted.

Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Kate Batty-Smith on 01304 872303 or by e-mail at kate.batty-smith@dover.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive

Dover Leisure Centre Project Advisory Group Membership:

T J Bartlett (Chairman)

P M Beresford

N J Collor

M D Conolly

P Walker

Mr P Ward

AGENDA

1 **APOLOGIES**

To receive any apologies for absence.

2 **APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS**

To note appointments of Substitute Members.

3 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST** (Page 4)

To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be

transacted on the agenda.

4 **MINUTES** (Pages 5-10)

To confirm the attached notes of the meeting of the Committee held on 19 May 2016.

5 **FUNDING OPTIONS** (Page 11)

To receive a briefing from the Director of Finance, Housing and Community or his deputy.

An Affordability Conclusions paper is attached.

6 **FACILITY MIX**

As requested at its meeting held on 19 May 2016, to receive feedback from Officers on a visit to a 'Clip and Climb' facility, and a briefing on the additional research undertaken in respect of the potential provision of a spa facility.

7 <u>CONSULTATION</u> (Pages 12-18)

To review the attached public consultation materials.

8 **SOFT MARKET TESTING**

To receive a briefing on responses received during soft market testing with potential contractors and operators.

9 **LAND ACQUISITION**

To receive a briefing on progress regarding land acquisition.

10 **NEXT STEPS**

Reports to Cabinet

11 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

To consider future meeting dates.

Access to Meetings and Information

- Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its Committees and Sub-Committees. You may remain present throughout them except during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.
- All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on the front page of the agenda. There is disabled access via the Council Chamber entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer. In addition, there is a PA system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.

- Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting. Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from our website www.dover.gov.uk. Minutes will be published on our website as soon as practicably possible after each meeting. All agenda papers and minutes are available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.
- If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Kate Batty-Smith, Democratic Support Officer, telephone: 01304 872303 or email: kate.batty-smith@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.

Declarations of Interest

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.

Other Significant Interest (OSI)

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's procedure rules.

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.

Note to the Code:

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in some cases a DPI.

Minutes of the meeting of the **DOVER LEISURE CENTRE PROJECT ADVISORY GROUP** held at the Council Offices, Whitfield on Thursday, 19 May 2016 at 5.01 pm.

Present:

Chairman: Councillor M D Conolly

Councillors: P M Beresford

N J Collor P Walker Mr P Ward

Also present: Councillor S F Bannister

Councillor M J Ovenden

Officers: Director of Environment and Corporate Assets

Principal Infrastructure and Delivery Officer Principal Community and Leisure Officer

Democratic Support Officer

1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

In the absence of Councillor T J Bartlett, the Democratic Support Officer advised that it was necessary to appoint a Chairman for the meeting.

2 APOLOGIES

It was noted that Councillor T J Bartlett had sent an apology for absence.

3 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

It was noted that there were no substitute members.

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

It was noted that there were no declarations of interest.

5 NOTES

The notes of the meeting of the Group held on 31 March 2016 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

6 INDOOR SPORTS FACILITY STRATEGY

The Principal Infrastructure and Delivery Officer (PIDO) updated Members on the Indoor Sports Facility Strategy (ISFS), public consultation on which had closed on 6 May 2016. 90 responses had been received raising, amongst other things, issues surrounding swimming, location, sports halls, basketball, use by, and of, schools, operational management and equalities. It was difficult to summarise the responses which had been so varied. However, the results of the consultation would be presented to Cabinet on 4 July and responses to all consultee comments included as an appendix to the report. In response to the Chairman, it was confirmed that the report would set out the proposed changes to the ISFS as a result of the consultation, and contain a summary of the main issues raised by consultees.

Members were advised that Officers working on areas such as finance and public consultation would be invited to attend future meetings where appropriate.

It was agreed that the verbal update be noted.

7 LEISURE CENTRE VISITS

The Principal Leisure Officer (PLO) advised that the Group had visited three leisure centres on 20 April and another on 5 May.

Following the visits, Members' views on the facility options had been sought, and a summary of these could be found on page 16 of the agenda. Five-a-side size 3G pitches had proved popular and were viewed as a core facility. The Chairman commented that a 3G pitch or pitches would be essential were the sports hall provision to be reduced from eight courts to four given that football was currently one of the most popular activities in the sports hall. However, consideration would need to be given to Sport England guidance governing separate changing-rooms. The PLO advised that, whilst Sport England preferred separate changing-rooms for full-size pitches, the pitches proposed would not be full-sized, and specification of changing facilities was therefore open to negotiation.

Pages 9 to 15 of the agenda set out the feedback received from Members on the individual leisure centres visited. In summary, Members had felt generally less positive about traditional climbing walls than 'Clip and Climb' walls, a new concept put forward by the consultants. Members who had had personal experience of the latter praised them and viewed them as potentially good income generators. The layout of gyms and lighting (particularly natural lighting) were also seen as important factors in a successful design.

The Director of Environment and Corporate Assets (DECA) commented that the visits had proved very useful in identifying potential design/architectural problems, as well as learning about the most effective finishes, wear and tear, etc. For example, although there had been generally positive comments about the leisure centre at Watford, one of the areas of concern had been the relative lack of visibility around the swimming area. The St Albans centre was an upmarket facility serving an affluent area, whose ambitions were to compete with the private sector. The Flitwick centre was a newly opened, mid-range facility, with two 5-a-side 3G pitches and a gym which was of similar quality to that of St Albans'. The facility at Ramsgate had a different offer, but it had been interesting to see what was available locally.

The PLO reported that Officers had also undertaken a fifth leisure centre visit to Elmbridge on the outskirts of London. This centre served a mixed demographic and had a core facility mix which was similar to Dover's, although it had an 8-court sports hall. The centre had not been funded by Sport England. It was housed in a 10-year old building which had worn well. Two key elements had come out of the visit for Officers. Firstly, the operators had advised that, in hindsight, they would have reduced the sports hall to four courts. The 8-court hall was under-used and therefore not generating as much income as predicted. Secondly, a soft-play facility was incorporated into a glazed area adjacent to the entrance and café where children could be seen but not heard. This was a good facility which generated a healthy profit. The café at Elmbridge had been the best one of all the centres visited in terms of design and layout. It was what was known as a 'Grab and Go' café, moving away from a full catering facility. The centre had an 8-lane 25-metre pool and a teaching pool with moveable floor. In respect of the latter, the operator

had advised that a moveable floor was essential because it meant that the pool could be used for swimming lessons, aqua-aerobics and water confidence sessions for toddlers.

The Chairman remarked that Members had been sceptical about the suitability of a spa for the Dover centre. However, the Ramsgate spa appeared to be a success, and indicated that spas could do well in areas which were not as affluent as St Albans. He commented that the retail offer at Dover would need to be carefully developed. The PIDO advised that the entrance area at Elmbridge contained a retail offer similar to Ramsgate's which generated a healthy turnover. Officers were mindful that the new leisure centre would need an attractive retail offer, but the detail of this would be considered at a later stage of the process as efforts were now focused on getting the correct facility mix. The DECA added that the retail offer was solely an issue for the Council rather than Sport England. There was consensus that the retail area would be an important element of the facilities on offer.

In response to concerns raised, the Chairman confirmed that the Council was still at the stage of defining what it wanted from a new leisure centre, particularly in respect of the sports facility mix. There was still some way to go and no decisions had been made. By September, the Group would be making further recommendations to Cabinet on the leisure centre, on the back of the ISFS. The PLO clarified that the information in the ISFS would feed into the consultants' feasibility and options appraisal work.

It was agreed that the update be noted.

8 FACILITY MIX - CORE AND COMMERCIAL FACILITIES

The PIDO referred Members to page 3 of the Facility Options report. There had been some slippage in timings, and Officers would now be making recommendations to Cabinet on the facilities mix, options, etc in September. The PLO advised that the process of soft market testing and exploring operational management options would commence at the end of the week. Public consultation on facilities and options were anticipated to take place in the first two weeks of July. The Chairman commented that the timings were tight.

On accessibility, the PIDO advised that Kent County Council's (KCC) Public Health team had advised that the July Cabinet report should contain a preliminary assessment of this matter, identifying whether the proposals in the ISFS met the needs of protected groups. It was confirmed that protected groups would be invited to take part in the consultation, the results of which would accompany the September Cabinet report. Councillor P Walker stressed that the public needed to have confidence that the Council was looking at this issue, and attached importance to it.

Councillor N J Collor raised concerns about the amount of car parking, stating that at least 300 car parking spaces plus coach bays would be needed. The PIDO advised that the proposed parking provision had been arrived at on the basis of initial advice from KCC. It was provisional and could be increased if necessary. In response to queries, it was clarified that the swimming-pool would be the only 8-lane competition standard pool in Kent. The starting point for assessment of facilities was the existing mix at Dover Leisure Centre. Little or no interest had been expressed in diving during development of the draft ISFS, which had been informed by engagement with the governing bodies of various sports. In addition, only a very

small number of the ISFS consultation responses had mentioned diving, and the provision of diving facilities had therefore been discounted.

Members were referred to page 7 of the report which contained an affordability analysis. The PIDO advised that the funding gap of £2.276 million assumed that Sport England would provide some funding and the remainder would be found from the Council's capital reserves and borrowing. The Chairman advised that £2 million had been set aside from reserves for this purpose. The question was whether to allocate less from reserves and borrow more or vice versa. In his view the funding issue was firmly within the Group's remit to consider, particularly as he assumed that the report to Cabinet in September would include funding information. Councillor Walker agreed, arguing that it was imperative for the Group to know the financial implications of the options being considered. Transparency was essential as the public needed to understand why some options were not affordable. Mr P Ward added that this also applied to the choice of site. The public would need to be persuaded as to why a particular site had been chosen. The Chairman suggested that the Director of Finance, Housing and Community and his deputy be asked to attend a meeting to take Members through the funding options as this was a critical issue

The PLO referred Members to page 8 of the report which set out the facility options based on affordability. Options shaded green were positive additions and should be included, if possible. Those shaded amber, whilst having a relatively small adverse effect on affordability, could perhaps meet a strategic need or be important for the district; no strong recommendations on these were being made by the consultant. Red options would have a strong negative impact on the affordability of the project.

In response to the Chairman, it was confirmed that the soft-play (or similar) facility and café could be crucial to the centre's success. The PLO stated that the consultants' assessment that a soft-play facility would have a negative impact had been based on an unsupervised, non-paying facility located in a multi-purpose room. However, the Elmbridge facility had allowed Officers to see another model, this one being located by the entrance and café, with access to a terraced outside area, and access charged for. Officers would challenge the consultants on this. Councillor Walker commented that there was a huge demand for this type of facility. Members requested that Officers visit a 'Clip and Climb' facility and provide feedback to the Group at the next meeting.

The DECA advised that each of the ten options set out in the report had a capital cost associated with it. The five-a-side pitches were sensible additions for both financial and strategic sports provision reasons. The 'Clip and Climb' facility had positive ratings. However, Officers had not seen one and would need to talk to operators. Councillor P M Beresford commented that there was now no other children's soft-play facility in the area. In respect of the 3G pitch, the consultants' recommendation was that, rather than creating a new facility, it would be better to work with Christ Church Academy which already had a site with planning permission for a 3G pitch, and the requisite changing facilities already constructed. This was the site of a former artificial pitch which would need to be re-laid.

The PLO advised that a sauna and steam-room could be provided at a modest cost. Although it would not generate income, the existing steam-room at Dover was an important facility for customers and it was recommended that a new one should be provided. The DECA advised that the feedback from Ramsgate on toning tables was that they were a popular facility. The costs of installing them at Ramsgate had been low as an existing room had been converted. Providing them at Dover would

clearly cost more as it would necessitate an increase in the floor space of the new building. Furthermore, given local demographic profiles, it was possible that Deal would be a more appropriate location. Your Leisure, the operators of the Ramsgate facility, was of the view that there was not the capacity to sustain two toning table facilities in the district.

Less research had been done by the consultants to assess the local market for a spa facility than for the other facilities because it had been a late addition. Councillor Walker commented that any assessment would need to take account of future demand created by major housing developments. A long-term view needed to be taken on this issue, considering what leisure facilities were likely to attract people to live in the district. The PLO added that feedback from two existing facilities indicated that a separate entrance would be needed. Another option would be to add the spa at a later date.

To summarise, the DECA advised that the options shaded red would clearly add significant costs and should not be included in the facilities mix. Amber options would require more discussions with the consultants. Of the green shaded options, the 'Clip and Climb' facility would need further investigation.

The Chairman summarised the Group's views on options as he understood them. The new centre would have a main pool and a combined learner/confidence pool (with moveable floor). Subject to further information, a soft-play facility should be included. A spa was an attractive but expensive option. On this matter, and in response to questions, the PLO advised that the Ramsgate spa made money. If the sauna and steam-room were to be incorporated into a spa, customers would have to pay for the facility which was currently included in the swimming charge. There were few spa facilities in the district, with one of the existing ones due to close. It was agreed that the consultants should be requested to carry out further research in order for the Group to make an informed decision on a spa facility.

It was agreed to note the report.

9 NEXT STEPS

In response to Councillor Collor, the DECA advised that information on the acquisition of land for the site would be shared with the Group at the appropriate time. Sequential testing in support of the planning application was currently taking place in order to investigate whether any other sites in the town centre were suitable. Planners were beginning to work on an application for the Whitfield site which was Cabinet's preferred location, and were aware of the project timetable.

The PIDO confirmed that Officers would report to the Group's 30 June meeting on 'Clip and Climb', soft-play and spa facilities. Members would also have sight of the public consultation questionnaires and could provide feedback on them. It was clarified that there would be two workshops: one focused on user groups and the other with stakeholders. Councillor Walker stressed that the information given to the public should be user-friendly and include costs. It was important that the public should be under no illusions that there was a bottomless pit of funding for the project. The PLO confirmed that the consultation would include evidence so that the public could understand how Officers had arrived at the core options and their needs analyses. In response to the Chairman, the PLO confirmed that a communication plan was in place to address any criticism from the press and social media.

It was agreed that the verbal update be noted.

10 <u>DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS</u>

Due to the EU referendum on 23 June which affected room and Officer availability, it was agreed that the next meeting would be held on 30 June.

The meeting ended at 6.28 pm.

Affordability Conclusions

n/a Core Option	Rank
Option	Description
-£2,276,494	Affordability Comparison with Option 1
This is the basis for all options. The funding gap for the core option is £2.276m	Recommendation

10	· w	30	7	6	^Ω 8	4	ω	Ν	4
50m pool with 500 spectator seats	Additional 4 Court Sports Hall	Confidence water area	Soft play (not staffed)	Full Spa (Ramsgate)	Toning tables	Small sauna and steam (poolside)	Full size 3G pitch	Clip and climb	2 x five a side football pitches (outdoor 3G)
-£7,580,487	-£2,193,210	-£1,214,501	-£762,083	-£472,259	-£385,786	£38,890	£117,666	£268,716	£421,165
This option creates the largest affordability gap of all options. Do not include on grounds of affordability and no strategic need identified. It would result in over provision in terms of pool water and is aimed more at ellie/competition swimmers. Dover is not currently identified as a priority for a 50m competition pool.	Do not include. Likely to have a negative impact on attordability of the project, increasing the affordability gap significantly. Provision of outdoor five a side pitches can mitigate the impact of the loss of 4 courts compared to the existing centre, as much of the activity that takes place in the half at peak time is five a side football.	Do not include on grounds of affordability and competition with the leisure water provision at Tides (Deaf), which meets this need for the district better	Do not include on grounds of negative impact on affordability.	Do not include on grounds of affordability. This option presents a risk in terms of financial viability and should be regarded as a nice to have facility. Could be considered as a potential future phase / extension.	Do not include on grounds of affordability. Should only be included if the re is a specific and clearly identified need from a health and inclusion perspective Also, unlikely to be sustainable at both Tides and Dover Leisure Centre	Should include based on the improved affordability. Not a strategically important facility, so it perhaps should be regarded as a 'nice to have' facility.	The Council could provide this to meet a clear strategic need, though other organisations in Dover are considering provision of similar facilities. Suggest the Council works towards provision in partnership with another organisation via joint funding e.g. Dover Christchurch Academy possibly in partnership with football and rugby clubs.	Inclusion should improve financial viability significantly. It should be regarded as a 'nice to have' facility. There is a risk associated with providing such a specific activity area, if trends change in the future.	Include, as this has the most significant positive impact on affordability. Provision of outdoor five a side pitches can mitigate the impact of the loss of 4 courts compared to the existing centre, so important from a participation perspective.











NEW DOVER LEISURE CENTRE

Workout! Have your say on plans for the new Dover Leisure Centre

We've developed exciting plans for a bigger and better Dover Leisure Centre. Located in Whitfield this will include a county standard competition swimming pool, learner pool, sports hall and outdoor five-a-side pitches, 120 station gym and spin studio, three multi-activity studios, a sauna and steam room. There will also be a cafe, 'clip-and-climb' along with space for community and event hire. There will be a minimum of 250 parking spaces.

1. On average, how many times a month do youcurrently use Dover Leisure Centre?
Never
1 to 5 times a month
5 to 10 times a month
More than 10 times a month
2. Do you support plans for a new Dover Leisure Centre?
Yes
○ No
If 'No', please tell us why not

12

3. Which of the following facilities are most important to you? (Please tick your top three choices)
Main swimming pool
Learner pool
Sports hall
Health & fitness gym
Multi-purpose studios (e.g. for fitness classes)
Spin studio
Squash courts
'Clip-and-Climb'
Sauna & steam room
5-a-side football pitches (3G)
Cafe
4. Do you have a view on the proposed site at Whitfield? I support the proposed site
I do not support the proposed site
No strong view
Please let us know any comments you may have
5. How do you usually travel to the existing Dover Leisure Centre?
On foot - walk/run
Public transport - bus/train
Car/motorcycle
Bike
Other (please specify)

. H	
	On foot - walk/run
	Public transport - bus/train
$\overline{}$	Train
$\overline{}$	Car/motorcycle
	Bike
\bigcirc	Other (please specify)
. If	the Whitfield plans go ahead, how often would you use the new leisure centre?
\bigcirc	About the same
	More frequently
	Less frequently
	Never /hat do you like most about the plans for the new leisure centre?
3. W	
3. W	/hat do you like most about the plans for the new leisure centre?
3. W	what do you like most about the plans for the new leisure centre? Is there anything you would like to see changed to improve the plans for the new leisure centre?
9. Is	Where do you live? (Please tell us the first part of your postcode only, e.g. CT16)

12. How old are you?
0-14
15-24
25-34
35-44
45-54
55-64
65+
13. Do you consider yourself to be disabled as set out in the Equality Act 2010?
Yes
○ No
Prefer not to say
If 'Yes', please tell us how the new leisure centre better meet your needs?

Q&A – DOVER LEISURE CENTRE

Why do we need a new leisure centre in Dover?

Built in the 1970s the Dover Leisure Centre needs major investment but has limited room to expand.

What other sites did you consider?

Alongside the current location, we looked at sites on the seafront, Maison Dieu, Buckland Mill, and in Whitfield.

Why can't you build it in the town centre?

The town centre sites are all limited. We're proposing a bigger leisure centre with more facilities.

How can we get to Whitfield if we don't drive?

There are existing bus and cycle routes serving Whitfield. We'll work with bus operators to develop services.

Did you look at sites in the wider district?

Replacing the Dover Leisure Centre is a priority because it serves the largest town in the district. Aylesham, Deal, and Sandwich have more modern leisure centres.

Why don't you build a swimming pool in Sandwich?

The Sandwich Leisure Centre is not owned by the Council. We are assisting the Trust which runs it to look at the feasibility of their ambitions for a pool in Sandwich.

Why can't you build a 50m (Olympic size) pool?

A 50m pool would be a risky and costly option. Our plans will deliver the only county standard competition swimming pool in Kent.

Why are you reducing the size of the sports hall?

Five-a-side is the biggest user of the sports hall at the existing leisure centre. We're proposing a smaller, four court sports hall with two outdoor, artificial (3G) pitches for five-a-side.

Why are there two squash courts?

We've based this on current usage, availability of courts elsewhere in the district, and affordability.

What about facilities for young people?

Alongside an 8-lane main pool we're proposing a bigger learner pool with a moveable floor so that the depth can be changed. There will be a clip-and-climb wall (from age 4), and three multi-purpose studios to deliver a wide range of uses for all age groups.

How much will it cost to build?

We're still working on the detailed costings. The total investment, including land, will be in the region of £18-20 million.

Will Council Tax be going up to pay for it?

The project will be paid for through a combination of Council reserves, borrowing, and a land swap for the existing leisure centre. The new centre will generate revenue that can be reinvested. Some potential operators may also invest.

How will you borrow money?

The council can access a range of borrowing at very competitive rates.

What are the next steps?

A final decision on the plans will be made by DDC's Cabinet on 5 September. A further round of consultation will then be held.

When will the new centre be built?

Detailed timescales will be agreed once the decision to proceed has been made by Cabinet. We expect construction to take around 18 months with a planned opening in 2018/19.

What are you going to do with the existing leisure centre?

We are looking at options for redeveloping the site given its proximity to the St James development.

Who will run the new leisure centre?

We have spoken with a number of operators about our plans, and will tender for the management of the centre once the plans are agreed.

Will the prices go up?

Pricing will be for the operator to determine.

Will the new centre be accessible for users with disabilities?

Yes, we're designing access for all. The swimming pool, changing rooms and toilets will all be accessible. There will be lifts between the two floors and parking for blue badge holders.





JOIN THE WORKOUT!

Have your say on plans for the NEW DOVER LEISURE CENTRE

We're planning a bigger, better leisure centre:

- County standard competition pool with tiered seating
 - · Learner pool and clip 'n' climb
- · Sports hall and outdoor 3G pitches for five-a-side football
- · 120 station health and fitness gym, spin studio and 2 squash courts
 - · 3 multi-activity studios, sauna and steam room
 - · Cafe and flexible space for community/event use
 - 350 parking spaces

How to take part: online at www.dover.gov.uk or come along to one of our drop-in sessions

Dover Leisure Centre, Townwall Street, Dover, CT16 ILN
Thursday 14 July 5pm-8pm
Saturday 16 July 9am-12 noon
Tuesday 19 July10am-1pm

Whitfield Village Hall, Manley Close, Whitfield, Dover, CT13 3LY

Thursday 21 July 9am-12 noon

Dover Community Regatta, Dover Seafront, CT17 9BU Saturday 23 July I 0am-6pm